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Food and Drug Administration (FDA) Tobacco Retail Enforcement
Invitation for Bid (IFB)
Questions and Answers

The bid due date is being extended until Friday, June 5, 2020, 1:30 pm eastern standard time.

No further questions will be accepted after 5:00 pm eastern standard time on Tuesday, June 2, 2020.


1) What is the Contractor required to submit in order for the Government to determine technical acceptability? Per the header text:
Your electronic submission must include the following. Failure to submit all of these items will result in
automatic rejection of your bid:
A. Completed IFB.
B. Appropriate responses to all “Mandatory Attributes” contained in the IFB.
Your electronic submission should also include the following as attachments. Failure to submit these items
may result in the rejection of your bid:
A. Signed “Certifications Form”.
B. Signed “Lobbying Certification Form”, if applicable

2) Is a Technical Proposal required for submission? If so, please provide instructions and evaluation factors for the submission. No. 

3) What has been the average violation/buy rate? Refer to FDA Website: https://www.accessdata.fda.gov/scripts/oce/inspections/oce_insp_searching.cfm

4) How does PA calculate its violation rate and over what periods of measurement? Refer to FDA Website: https://www.accessdata.fda.gov/scripts/oce/inspections/oce_insp_searching.cfm

5) (SOW A.4: Hearings.) How many FDA-led hearings regarding tobacco retail inspections and results have been conducted in the last 5 years? Refer to FDA Website: https://www.accessdata.fda.gov/scripts/oce/inspections/oce_insp_searching.cfm

6) Will the Contractor’s Liaison be granted access to TIMS for the purposes of scheduling inspections, monitoring deadlines, etc.? Once the Contractor’s Liaison passes the FDA  Background Investigation, the Contractor Liaison would be granted limited access to TIMS. The Contractor’s Liaison will not assign FDA Tobacco Compliance Inspections.

7) How will inspections be assigned (percentage by city/zip code/county, routes pre-created by team, etc.)? The number of FDA Tobacco Compliance Inspections that are required to be conducted are governed by the number of Tobacco Retail Establishments located in each county.  

8) What percentage of the inspections are located within harder to reach communities, e.g. extremely rural areas like Potter or Cameron Counties where population density is low and may require significant travel by the CO and UP? The number of FDA Tobacco Compliance Inspections that are required to be conducted are governed by the number of Tobacco Retail Establishments located in each county.  

9) Who is responsible for assigning inspections (Contractor’s Liaison or PA’s DTPC staff)?  The DTPC FDA Staff are responsible for assigning FDA Tobacco Compliance Inspections.

10) Is the Contractor’s Liaison required to be based in Pennsylvania?  No, the Contractor’s Liaison is not required to be based in Pennsylvania.

11) Is the Contractor required to create their own tracking system that is input into the M-FIRLS system used by the State of Pennsylvania? No, the Commissioned Officer is responsible to make an entry onto the M-FIRL at the end of each FDA Tobacco Compliance Inspection.  At the end of every month the Contractor’s Liaison is to submit the completed M-FIRLs to DTPC FDA Staff. 

12) Are Commissioned Officers (COs) required to be Law Enforcement Officers (LEOs)? No, Commissioned Officers are not required to be Law Enforcement Officers.

13) Will a new Underage Purchaser (UP) be required to do a ride-along with an existing inspection team prior to conducting inspections themselves for the first time? Yes, new Underage Purchasers are required to conduct a ride-along with an existing Commissioned Officer and Underage Purchaser prior to conducting FDA Tobacco Compliance Inspections.

14) [bookmark: _Hlk41399051]Will a COVID-19 Risk Management Plan be required prior to this contract starting work? Yes, DTPC FDA Staff will issuing a COVID-19 Risk Mitigation Plan prior to the vendor conducting FDA Tobacco Compliance Inspections. 

15) Will the state require the use of personal protective equipment (PPE) by COs and UPs? If so, who will provide the necessary equipment (masks, disinfectant wipes, etc.)?  Yes, the state will require the use of PPE by the COs and UPs.  The state will not provide the PPE.

16) Would the Commonwealth kindly share the anticipated contract award amount for Fiscal Year 2021?  No. 

17) The Terms and Conditions document states that the Commonwealth intends to make a single award to “the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.” Other than price, what other criteria does the Commonwealth intend to use to evaluate bidders as responsive and responsible?  Bidders are required to submit the completed IFB, appropriate responses to all “mandatory attributes”, signed Certification form and Signed Lobbying Certification, if applicable.  

18) Does the Commonwealth also intend to evaluate bidders’ qualifications and proven capability to perform the work based on prior experience? No. 

19) The Statement of Work and other solicitation documents do not mention using chaperones for undercover buys to accompany underage tobacco purchasers. Chaperones are often included on inspection teams to help ensure the safety of underage purchasers for undercover buy inspections. Does the Commonwealth intend for bidders to include and cost for chaperones as part of regional retailer inspection teams? If so, under which line items should this cost be included?  Commissioned Officers are required to accompany underage purchasers for undercover buy inspections. 
